Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

Special Meeting Notice

Date: February 12, 2021

To: John Jennings
W. Edward Walldroff
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.

Paul Warneck
William Johnson
Lisa L’Huillier
From: Chairman David Converse
Re: SPECIAL Board of Directors’ Meeting

A Special Board of Directors’ Meeting has been scheduled for Thursday, February 18, 2021 at
8:00 a.m. in the board room at 800 Starbuck Avenue, Watertown, NY. You may also join via zoom
at the following link https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84355250468?pwd=R0t4 ViRPAGIBZDJrL2JQYVVjKytDdz09
Meeting ID: 843 5525 0468, Password: 011440, 1-929-205-6099 US (New York).

pss

c: David Zembiec
Lyle Eaton
Marshall Weir
Jay Matteson
Christine Powers
Kent Burto
Gregory Gardner
Robert Aiken
Justin Miller, Esq.
Donald Rutherford
Michelle Capone
Matthew Siver
Media



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
800 Starbuck Avenue, Suite 800
Watertown, New York 13601
Telephone: (315) 782-5865 or (800) 553-4111 Facsimile (315) 782-7915
www.jcida.com

REVISED Special Meeting Agenda
Thursday, February 18, 2021
8:00 a.m.

Agenda

I.  Call to Order
II.  Pledge of Allegiance

III.  Special Business

Consider Initial Project Resolution No. 02.18.2021.02 for DigiCollect LLC
Review of Loan Application for Convalt Energy LLC
Review of Loan Application for DigiCollect LLC

ol ol ol

IV. Adjournment

Consider Initial Project Resolution No. 02.18.2021.01 for Convalt Energy LLC



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee Meetings Minutes
February 16, 2021

Present: Robert Aliasso, Chair, David Converse

Absent: John Jennings

Also Present:
Staff: David Zembiec, Marshall Weir, Lyle Eaton, Peggy Sampson
IDA/LDC Board Members: W. Edward Walldroff, Bill Johnson, Paul Warneck, Lisa

L’Huillier, Rob Aiken, Christine Powers

Counsel: Justin Miller, Esq.

WLDC: Don Rutherford, Kylee McGrath, Mike Lumbis, Jeffrey Smith
DANC/NCA: Matt Siver

Empire State Development: David Whipple

Convalt Energy LLC/DigiCollect LL.C: Hari Achuthan

Media: Lexi Bruening from WWNY

II.

III.

IV.

Call to Order: Chair Aliasso called the meeting to order at 8:13 a.m.
Pledge of Allegiance

Introductions: After introductions of the participants, Mr. Aliasso gave an overview of
the applications the committee would be reviewing. Convalt Energy LLC and
DigiCollect LLC are both applying for revolving loan funds and Payment In Lieu of
Taxes agreements. He then asked Mr. Achuthan to give an overview of the companies
and his plans for the projects in Jefferson County.

Company overviews

Mr. Achuthan thanked staff for their support during the last 5 months. He said that
Convalt Energy has been in operation abroad for 7 years. He said that they are currently
developing projects and have existing projects in India and Africa. He said that they
made the decision to move back stateside to develop and build the pipeline, so they don’t
have to be dependent on China for pv panels. He said that as a manufacturer of solar
panels, they will export 60%-70% of the panels to their own projects overseas.

Mr. Achuthan said that they will start small production capacity which will consists of
20,000 square feet for the development of renewable power and panels. He said the initial
investment to get up and running will be $51M. Mr. Achuthan explained some the
reasons why they chose Jefferson County. He said that in 2020 NYS created a mandate
to obtain 70% of its energy from renewable energy sources by 2030. Jefferson County
was attractive because of the availability of low-cost power; the available workforce
created by soldiers transitioning out of the Army at Fort Drum each month, and the value
of the incentive proposal submitted by the JCIDA. He also cited the area’s history with
paper and manufacturing; and said the timing is right.

1

-3



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee Meetings Minutes
February 16, 2021

VI

Mr. Achuthan said that he has been in contact with local companies to fabricate steel. He
said this will help build the local supply chain. He said other materials such as electrical
wires and logistics will provide spin-off opportunities plus create jobs. He said he needs
attractive financing to compete.

Mr. Aliasso pointed out that the recommended terms deviate from the program criteria.

Mr. Aliasso said this is a great opportunity and a significant investment. Mr. Converse
said that staff and some board members have been working on these projects since
August 2020 and have completed the initial due diligence. Mr. Aliasso said that NYS has
also vetted them as well.

Mr. Achuthan said DigiCollect is a digital platform which has been operating for four
years. He said that they have developed 15-16 applications and have three pattens
pending with the Department of Energy. He said they will be building sensors to be
purchased by grid operators. He said DigiCollect will be co-located in Jefferson County
and will set up data centers which will utilize the cool air for cooling.

Process:

Mr. Converse asked attorney Justin Miller to provide an overview of the process moving
forward so that everyone understood it.

Attorney Miller said that these are two significant, unique projects. He said that it will
involve disposition of real property by the IDA and lending of loan funds for straight
leaseback transactions. He said that he will prepare initial inducement resolutions to be
considered at Thursday’s board meeting which will indicate that the applications are
complete and provide authorization to schedule public hearings. He said the resolution
will also authorize the disposition notices (once the terms are firmed up) and consider and
authorize a land development agreement (LDA) to enter into an exclusive option.”

Attorney Miller said the LDA will help set terms and the time period for the companies to
complete site planning, zoning, and SEQR. Only after the necessary permits, approvals,
and funding are in place to begin construction would the JCIDA and the companies close
on the property transfer and PILOT agreements.

He said the next step would be the finalize the term sheets for each of the loans between
all of the agencies, all of which will be presented to the board for consideration.

Executive session: At 9:10 a.m., a motion was made by Mr. Converse to enter into
executive session to discuss the personal and professional financials of a particular
individual or corporation, seconded by Mr. Aliasso. Board Members, Staff, Counsel and
Inter-Agency Representatives remained.



Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency
Loan Review Committee Meetings Minutes
February 16, 2021

VII.

VIII.

IX.

XI.

XII.

At 10:36 a.m., a motion to leave executive session was made by Mr. Converse, seconded
by Mr. Aliasso.

Convalt Energy LLC Loan Request — A request for a $250,000 Revolving Loan to be
used for working capital to develop a solar panel manufacturing facility. Staff
recommends 3% interest for a 7-year term. The total project cost is $593,000,000.
Terms for collateral to be negotiated. The applicant projects 165 jobs at full operation in
Year 1 and projecting 525 jobs in Year 5. The loan will be contingent upon participation
by the Watertown Local Development Corporation. Mr. Converse motioned for
recommendation to the full board. Seconded by Mr. Aliasso. Approved.

DigiCollect LLC Loan Request — A request for a $500,000 Revolving Loan to be used
for working capital to develop a software development facility to involve some
manufacturing. Staff recommends 3% interest for a 7-year term. The total project cost is
$241,000,000. Terms for collateral to be negotiated. The applicant projects 175 jobs at
full operation in Year 1 and projecting 1,535 jobs in Year 5. The loan will be contingent
upon participation by the North Country Economic Development Fund, North Country
Alliance, and/or Development Authority of the North Country. Mr. Converse motioned
for recommendation to the full board. Seconded by Mr. Aliasso. Approved.

Convalt Energy LLC PILOT Request — A motion was made by Mr. Converse,
seconded by Mr. Aliasso to move the request to the full board at the special meeting on
February 18, 2021. All in favor.

DigiCollect LLC PILOT Request — A motion was made by Mr. Converse, seconded by
Mr. Aliasso to move the request to the full board at the special board meeting on
February 18, 2021. All in favor.

Other/Unfinished Business: None.

Adjournment: With no further business before the committee, Mr. Converse made a
motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. Aliasso. The meeting adjourned at

10:45 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Y



INITIAL PROJECT RESOLUTION

(Convait Energy LLC Project) DRAEFET

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday, February 18, 2021 at 8:00 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 02.18.2021.01

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) (i) ACCEPTING AN
APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY CONVALT ENERGY LLC, FOR ITSELF
AND/OR ON BEHALF OF ONE OR MORE ENTITIES TO BE FORMED
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”) WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW); (i) AUTHORIZING THE
SCHEDULING AND CONDUCT OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT
TO THE PROJECT; (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE BEING CONTEMPLATED BY THE AGENCY WITH
RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; (iv) AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF
CERTAIN AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE PROJECT; AND (v)
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A NOTICE OF DISPOSITION WITH
RESPECT TO CERTAIN REAL ESTATE OWNED BY THE AGENCY.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as
authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, CONVALT ENERGY LLC, for itself and/or on behalf of an entity or
entities to be formed (collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application (the
“Application”) to the Agency requesting the Agency's assistance with a certain project or
projects (collectively, the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the disposition by the Agency of all or
portions of approximately 100 acres of real property owned by the Agency and located in the
vicinity of State Route 12F in Town of Hounsfield, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”,
being more particularly described as one or more tax parcels as may be subdivided and/or
merged), (i) the planning, design, construction, equipping and operation of (a) the phased
development of an approximately 500,000 square foot manufacturing facility to accommodate
solar panel manufacturing and solar power plant generation, including building improvements
for manufacturing, warehousing, office space, and related internal spaces, external parking
improvements, storm water management and related site improvements, and related on and
offsite utility improvements, and (b) one or more photovoltaic solar energy arrays installed for

Page 1
G-



DRAFT

testing and energy production and sale for on and offsite usage, including panel foundations,
inverters, transformers, interconnect wiring, utility connections, sitework, landscaping, fencing,
security and related improvements (collectively, the “Improvements™), and (iii) the acquisition
in and around the Improvements and of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal
property and equipment (the “Equipment” and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements,
the “Facility”), and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of
subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold
interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the
Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction™); and

WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company
with respect to the Project (collectively, the “Financial Assistance™) in the form of: (A) an
exemption from all State and local sales and use taxes with respect to qualifying personal
property included in or incorporated into the Facility or used in the construction and equipping of
the Facility, (B) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financings undertaken to construct the
Facility, and (C) a partial real property tax abatement through a payment-in-lieu-of-tax
agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would make payments in
lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the benefit of each affected tax jurisdiction (the
“Affected Tax Jurisdictions™); and

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will undertake the negotiation of terms
for disposition of all or portions of the Land to the Company (the “Disposition”) to be
memorialized within a contemplated Land Development Agreement (“LDA”) to be entered into
a furtherance of the Project; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the Disposition, and in accordance with applicable
provisions of the Public Authorities Law (“PAL”), the Agency further contemplates the issuance
of a Notice of Disposition to required recipients pursuant to PAL Section 2897(6)(d) (the
“Disposition Notice”), such Disposition being exempted from publicly advertising for bids
pursuant to PAL Section 2897(6)(c)(v) and obtaining fair market value pursuant to PAL Section
2897(7)(ii); and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to (i) accept the Application, (ii) authorize the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing pursuant to an in accordance with the Act, (iii)
authorize negotiation of the LDA and PILOT Agreement, and (iv) once the terms of the
Disposition is agreed to, authorize the issuance of the Disposition Notice; and

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will conduct the Public Hearing and
negotiate, but not execute, an Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (the
“Agent Agreement”), a Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”), Leaseback Agreement (the
“Leaseback Agreement”) and PILOT Agreement pursuant to which the Agency would be willing
to take or retain a leasehold interest in the Land, the Improvements, the Equipment and personal
property constituting the Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Agency intends to describe the Project, accept the Application, describe
the forms of Financial Assistance contemplated by the Agency, secure any necessary consents

Pagﬂ ?
-7-



from the Affected Tax Jurisdictions, and authorize the scheduling and conduct of public
hearing(s) pursuant to and in accordance with the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in
the Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  Itis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to (i) dispose of interests in
the Land pursuant to the LDA and appoint the Company as agent to construct the Improvements
and acquire the Equipment constituting the Facility pursuant to the Agent Agreement and
Leaseback Agreement to be negotiated as components of one or more Straight Lease
Transactions; and

© Subject to the terms and conditions set forth within Section 4, hereof, the Agency
has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the Act; and

(D)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to undertake the
Project, thereby increasing capital investment and employment opportunities in the Town of
Hounsfield, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and

(E)  The Project will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Company or
any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area of the State of New York (the “State”)
to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; and the Agency
hereby finds that, based on the Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating
from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project
occupants from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their
respective industries.

Section 2. The proposed financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency
includes (i) an exemption from all state and local sales and use taxes with respect to the
qualifying personal property included within the Project or used in the acquisition, construction
or equipping of the Project, (ii) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financings undertaken to
construct the Facility, and (iii) a partial real property tax abatement through a payment-in-lieu-
of-tax agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would make
payments in lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the benefit of the Affected Tax

Jurisdictions.

Page ?



Section 3. The Agency further authorizes the scheduling and conduct of a public
hearing as required by Section 859-a of the Act (the “Public Hearing”). Prior to such Public
Hearing, the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby
authorized and directed to negotiate the terms of one or more PILOT Agreements for the Project
in accordance with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP”).

Section 4. The Agency's formal inducement to undertake the Project and approve the
Financial Assistance shall be by one or more further resolutions of the Agency and shall be
subject to the terms and conditions as are set forth therein.

Section 5. The Agency hereby authorizes the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency to negotiate the terms of, but not execute, a proposed LDA and
PILOT Agreements relating to the Disposition and Project. Once the terms of the Disposition are
agreed to, the Agency further authorizes the issuance of the Disposition Notice in such form as
approved by the Chief Executive Officer and Transaction Counsel to the Agency.

Section 6. Harris Beach PLLC, as Transaction Counsel for the Agency, is hereby
authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare for submission to the
Agency all documents necessary to effect the conduct of the Public Hearing and preparation of
the LDA and Disposition Notice.

Section 7. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate, but not execute, certain lease
agreements, an Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (the “Agent
Agreement”), the PILOT Agreement(s), and related documents to undertake the Straight Lease
Transaction. The Agency's authorization of the LDA, Project and the Financial Assistance shall
be subject to the adoption of Agency resolutions relative to same.

Section 8. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Agency
are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement the
provisions of this Resolution.

Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for an in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 10.  These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows:

Page 1



Yea Nay Absent Abstain

David J. Converse [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
John Jennings [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Robert E. Aliasso, Jr. [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
W. Edward Walldroff [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
William W. Johnson [ ] o ] [ 1 [ ]
Lisa L'Huillier [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Paul J. Warneck [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

Pag-~ ¢

-10-



STATE OF NEW YORK )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS:

[, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on March 4, 2021, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and
correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the
whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this _ day of , 2021.

(Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Pag-
-11-



INITIAL PROJECT RESOLUTION
(DigiCollect LLC Project)

A regular meeting of the Jefferson County Industrial Development Agency convened on
Thursday, February 18, 2021 at 8:00 a.m.

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit:
Resolution No. 02.18.2021.02

RESOLUTION OF THE JEFFERSON COUNTY INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) (i) ACCEPTING AN
APPLICATION SUBMITTED BY DIGICOLLECT LLC, FOR ITSELF
AND/OR ON BEHALF OF ONE OR MORE ENTITIES TO BE FORMED
(COLLECTIVELY, THE “COMPANY”) WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN
PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW); (ii) AUTHORIZING THE
SCHEDULING AND CONDUCT OF A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT
TO THE PROIJECT; (iii) DESCRIBING THE FORMS OF FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE BEING CONTEMPLATED BY THE AGENCY WITH
RESPECT TO THE PROJECT; (iv) AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION OF
CERTAIN AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE PROJECT; AND (v)
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A NOTICE OF DISPOSITION WITH
RESPECT TO CERTAIN REAL ESTATE OWNED BY THE AGENCY.

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of
New York, as amended, and Chapter 369 of the Laws of 1971 of the State of New York, as
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the JEFFERSON COUNTY
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring,
constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as
authorized by the Act; and

WHEREAS, DIGICOLLECT LLC, for itself and/or on behalf of an entity or entities
to be formed (collectively, the “Company”), has submitted an application (the “Application™) to
the Agency requesting the Agency's assistance with a certain project or projects (collectively, the
“Project”) consisting of: (i) the disposition by the Agency of all or portions of approximately
12.10 acres of real property owned by the Agency and located at 16904 State Route 12F in the
Town of Hounsfield, Jefferson County, New York (the “Land”, being more particularly
described as tax parcel No. 81.00-1-5), (ii) the phased planning, design, construction and
operation of an approximately 100,000 square foot manufacturing facility for use by the
Company to produce data sensors, monitors, data collection and storage and related software
developed for renewable energy and utility usage, including building improvements for
manufacturing, warehousing, office space, data storage and related internal spaces, external
parking improvements, storm water management and related site improvements, and related on
and offsite utility improvements (collectively, the “Improvements™), and (iii) the acquisition in

Page 7
<12-



and around the Improvements and of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal
property and equipment (the “Equipment” and, collectively with the Land and the Improvements,
the “Facility”), and (iv) entering into a straight lease transaction (within the meaning of
subdivision (15) of Section 854 of the Act), pursuant to which the Agency will retain a leasehold
interest in the Facility for a period of time and sublease such interest in the Facility back to the
Company (the “Straight Lease Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, the Agency is contemplating providing financial assistance to the Company
with respect to the Project (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”) in the form of: (A) an
exemption from all State and local sales and use taxes with respect to qualifying personal
property included in or incorporated into the Facility or used in the construction and equipping of
the Facility, (B) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financings undertaken to construct the
Facility, and (C) a partial real property tax abatement through a payment-in-lieu-of-tax
agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company would make payments in
lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the benefit of each affected tax jurisdiction (the
“Affected Tax Jurisdictions™); and

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will undertake the negotiation of terms
for disposition of all or portions of the Land to the Company (the “Disposition”) to be
memorialized within a contemplated Land Development Agreement (“LDA”) to be entered into
a furtherance of the Project; and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the Disposition, and in accordance with applicable
provisions of the Public Authorities Law (“PAL”), the Agency further contemplates the issuance
of a Notice of Disposition to required recipients pursuant to PAL Section 2897(6)(d) (the
“Disposition Notice”), such Disposition being exempted from publicly advertising for bids
pursuant to PAL Section 2897(6)(c)(v) and obtaining fair market value pursuant to PAL Section
2897(7)(ii); and

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to (i) accept the Application, (ii) authorize the
scheduling and conduct of a public hearing pursuant to an in accordance with the Act, (iii)
authorize negotiation of the LDA and PILOT Agreement, and (iv) once the terms of the
Disposition is agreed to, authorize the issuance of the Disposition Notice; and

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will conduct the Public Hearing and
negotiate, but not execute, an Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (“Agent
Agreement”), a Lease Agreement (the “Lease Agreement”), Leaseback Agreement (the
“Leaseback Agreement”) and PILOT Agreement pursuant to which the Agency would be willing
to take or retain a leasehold interest in the Land, the Improvements, the Equipment and personal
property constituting the Facility; and

WHEREAS, the Agency intends to describe the Project, accept the Application, describe
the forms of Financial Assistance contemplated by the Agency, secure any necessary consents
- from the Affected Tax Jurisdictions, and authorize the scheduling and conduct of public
hearing(s) pursuant to and in accordance with the Act.

Page ?
-13-



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE JEFFERSON
COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in
the Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that:

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all
powers granted to it under the Act; and

(B)  Itis desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to (i) dispose of interests in
the Land pursuant to the LDA and appoint the Company as agent to construct the Improvements
and acquire the Equipment constituting the Facility pursuant to the Agent Agreement and
Leaseback Agreement to be negotiated as components of one or more Straight Lease
Transactions; and

(C)  Subject to the terms and conditions set forth within Section 4, hereof, the Agency
has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the Act; and

(D)  The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to undertake the
Project, thereby increasing capital investment and employment opportunities in the Town of
Hounsfield, and otherwise furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act; and

(E)  The Project will not result in the removal of a facility or plant of the Company or
any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area of the State of New York (the “State™)
to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the
Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; and the Agency
hereby finds that, based on the Company’s application, to the extent occupants are relocating
from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage the Project
occupants from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the State and/or is
reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in their
respective industries.

Section 2. The proposed financial assistance being contemplated by the Agency
includes (i) an exemption from all state and local sales and use taxes with respect to the
qualifying personal property included within the Project or used in the acquisition, construction
or equipping of the Project, (ii) a mortgage recording tax exemption for financings undertaken to
construct the Facility, and (iii) a partial real property tax abatement through a payment-in-lieu-
of-tax agreement (the “PILOT Agreement”), pursuant to which the ‘Company would make
payments in lieu of real property taxes to the Agency for the benefit of the Affected Tax

Jurisdictions.

Section 3. The Agency further authorizes the scheduling and conduct of a public
hearing as required by Section 859-a of the Act (the “Public Hearing”). Prior to such Public
Hearing, the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency are hereby

Pag~?
-14-



authorized and directed to negotiate the terms of one or more PILOT Agreements for the Project
in accordance with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP”).

Section 4. The Agency’s formal inducement to undertake the Project and approve the
Financial Assistance shall be by one or more further resolutions of the Agency and shall be
subject to the terms and conditions as are set forth therein.

Section 3. The Agency hereby authorizes the Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or Chief
Executive Officer of the Agency to negotiate the terms of, but not execute, a proposed LDA and
PILOT Agreements relating to the Disposition and Project. Once the terms of the Disposition are
agreed to, the Agency further authorizes the issuance of the Disposition Notice in such form as
approved by the Chief Executive Officer and Transaction Counsel to the Agency.

Section 6. Harris Beach PLLC, as Transaction Counsel for the Agency, is hereby
authorized to work with counsel to the Company and others to prepare for submission to the
Agency all documents necessary to effect the conduct of the Public Hearing and preparation of
the LDA and Disposition Notice.

Section 7. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer of the
Agency are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate, but not execute, certain lease
agreements, an Agent and Financial Assistance and Project Agreement (the “Agent
Agreement”), the PILOT Agreement(s), and related documents to undertake the Straight Lease
Transaction. The Agency's authorization of the LDA, Project and the Financial Assistance shall
be subject to the adoption of Agency resolutions relative to same.

Section 8. The Chairman, Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Agency
are hereby authorized and directed to distribute copies of this Resolution to the Company and to
do such further things or perform such acts as may be necessary or convenient to implement the
provisions of this Resolution.

Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized
and directed for an in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees,
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency.

Section 10.  These Resolutions shall take effect immediately.

Pagr 1
_15-



The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll
call, which resulted as follows:

Yea Nay Absent Abstain

David J. Converse
John Jennings

Robert E. Aliasso, Jr.
W. Edward Walldroff
William W. Johnson
Lisa L'Huillier

Paul J. Warneck

N ———
— e e e e e
Iy, Y e gy p— e p—
e e e e b e
Lo B s I e e B s B s B s |
el e e e e e
e ——
— e e e e

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted.

Pag- *
-16-



STATE OF NEW YORK ) R —
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ) SS: R A T

I, the undersigned (Acting) Secretary of Jefferson County Industrial Development
Agency, DO HEREBY CERTIFY:

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of Jefferson County
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held
on February 18, 2021, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true
and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting,
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present
throughout said meeting.

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said
Agency this __ day of , 2021.

(Acting) Secretary

[SEAL]

Page A
-17-



